
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
  1000 Commerce Drive 

     Marquette, Michigan 49855 
           Ph | 906.228.6220 

Fx | 906.228.7337 
www.marquettetownship.org 

 
MARQUETTE TOWNSHIP BOARD - REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2022 - 6:30 PM 
MARQUETTE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY CENTER 

  
      
 1. Call to order 

 A.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 B.  Roll Call 
      
 2. Public Comment (3 minutes each)This Board is conducting a meeting today to take care of 

Township business. You are allowed to address the Board at least twice tonight, but we will not have 
back-and-forth conversations between the staff, the Board, and the public during Public Comment. For 
Public Comment, or if you would like to speak on a particular agenda item, state your name and 
address and you have three minutes to address the Board. The Board may, but is not required to, 
respond at Board Member Comment immediately following Public Comment. The Board may also 
request follow-up with the Township Manager on some matters addressed during Public Comment. 

      
 3. Board Member Comment in Response to Public Comment 
      
 4. Public Hearing 

 A.  Consider Public Act 425 Agreement with City of Marquette for Longyear 
Property 

      
 5. Consent Agenda 

 A.  Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of December 6, 2022. 

 B.  Bills Payable in the amount of $176,030.49.  Checks 162990 to 163036.  Note 
any voided checks. 

 C.  Received Committee and Other Reports 

 1.  Sheriff's Department Activity Report - August 2022 through November 2022 

 D.  Correspondence not Requiring Board Action 

 1.  U of M Ecologist Suggests Protecting MI Forests 

 2.  MCSWMA Meeting Schedule 2023 

 3.  MCSWMA Holiday Schedule 2023 

 4.  MCSWMA 12-21-22 Abbreviated Packet 

 5.  Charter Communication - Upcoming Changes Memo 

 E.  Financial Statements 

 1.  November 2022 Financial Statements 

 2.  Budget Amendment 2022-08 

Page 1 of 146

http://www.marquettetownship.org/


      
 6. Approval of the Agenda (Declaration of Conflict of Interest, if any) 
      
 7. Board Education/Privileged Comment 
      
 8. Community Linkage (primarily based on the Board’s Annual Plan of Work. Board member 

comment regarding what we are hearing from the external environment about township issues and 
activities.) 

      
 9. Policy Discussion, Consideration and Development 

 A.  Consider Fire Department On-Call Firefighter Andre Brown 

 B.  Consider Supervisor Committee Recommendations for 2023 

 C.  Schedule Special Meeting to Discuss Township Events 

 D.  Consider Establishing Ad-Hoc Committee to Discuss Establishing a Township 
Police Department 

 E.  Discuss MCSWMA Funding Request-PFAS Processing Facility 

 F.  Consider Renewal of Municipal Risk Insurance Policy (Liability Insurance) 

 G.  Consider Renewal of Health Insurance Policy 

 H.  Consider Proposal for Financial Audit Services 

 I.  Consider Driveway Approach Repairs 

 J.  Accept Van Overloop Donation 

 K.  Consider PA 425 Agreement with City of Marquette for Longyear Property 
      
 10. Assurance of Organizational Performance 

 A.  Board - Committee Updates 

 1.  Fire Department November 2022 Report 

 2.  Public Works Report 

 3.  Attorney Report 
      
 11. Public Comment (3 Minutes maximum) 
      
 12. Meeting Wrap-up 

 A.  Announcements 

 B.  Manager’s Report 

 C.  Review of Motions Passed & Assignments, if any 

 D.  Items for Future Agenda  

 E.  Board Member Comment  
      
 13. Adjournment  
  
 
Next Scheduled Meeting Date is Wednesday, January 4, 2023 at 5:30PM 

Page 2 of 146



 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JOINT AGREEMENT FOR CONDITIONAL PROPERTY TRANSFER AND DEVELOPMENT 
BETWEEN THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MARQUETTE AND CITY OF MARQUETTE 

MARQUETTE COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
 

 This Agreement is entered into the _____ day of ______________________, 2022, by and 

between the CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MARQUETTE, whose principal business address is 

1000 Commerce Drive, Marquette, Michigan 49855, and the CITY OF MARQUETTE, whose 

principal business address is 300 West Baraga Avenue, Marquette, Michigan 49855. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Marquette (hereinafter “the Township”) is a 

municipal corporation organized and existing under Article VII, Section 17, of the Michigan 

Constitution of 1963, and the Michigan Charter Township Act, MCL 42.1 et seq.; 

 WHEREAS, the City of Marquette (hereinafter “the City”) is a municipal corporation 

organized and existing under Article VII, Section 21, of the Michigan Constitution of 1963 

and the Home Rule City Act, MCL 117.1, et seq.; 

 WHEREAS, there is a need for additional quality housing that provides a choice of 

sizes and prices in both the Township and the City; 

 WHEREAS, additional housing can be expected to enhance economic development, 

jobs, and the tax base within Marquette County; 

Page 3 of 146



2 
 

 WHEREAS, the Township and the City also recognize the benefits of maintaining 

green space, preserving existing trail networks, and providing public access to natural 

recreation areas; 

 WHEREAS, Longyear Realty Corporation, a local investor, employer, and land owner, 

has proposed to create a Planned Unit Development residential area upon land it currently 

owns that is located partially within the Township and partially within the City; 

 WHEREAS, the Township and the City concur that the proposed development plan 

meets the needs and objectives of both municipalities. 

 THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and forbearances contained 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Legal Authority. This Agreement is made pursuant to the provisions of Act 425 of the 

Public Acts of 1984, as amended, MCL 124.21 et seq. (hereinafter “Act 425”), and the 

general powers and authority granted to both parties by the Michigan Constitution, 

the statues authorizing their organization and existence, and the Marquette City 

Charter. 

2. Property Transferred. The property located within the City of Marquette, County of 

Marquette, and State of Michigan, described in Exhibit A to this Agreement and 

depicted in Exhibit B, is hereby conditionally transferred to the Charter Township of 

Marquette. 

3. Effect of Transfer. The property transferred to the Township shall for all purposes be 

within the jurisdiction of the Township for the duration of this Agreement. The scope 

of jurisdictional authority to be exercised by the Township with regard to the 

transferred property includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

Page 4 of 146



3 
 

A. Zoning. The Township shall have jurisdiction over zoning and rezoning of the 

transferred property, however the Township may only rezone the transferred 

property as necessary in order to facilitate the development of 

residential/recreational uses as identified in a final development plan that is 

conceptually similar to the preliminary development plan of Longyear Realty 

Corporation attached as Exhibit A. The Township’s Zoning Ordinance shall apply 

to all parcels created and developed, whether under the Township’s Planned Unit 

Development requirements or other potentially applicable provisions. 

B. Water and Sewer Utilities. The Township will allow the property owner(s) to 

extend and connect to the Township’s municipal Watermain System and Sanitary 

Sewer System, at the property owner(s)’ expense. Connection and charges for 

services will be on the same basis and under the same fee structure, charges, and 

rates, as periodically adjusted, as other properties that receive such services 

within the Township’s jurisdictional legal boundaries. 

C. Police, Fire, and Other Governmental Services. The Township will provide police 

and fire protection, garbage collection, and all other Township services available 

on the same basis and under the same fee structure, charges, and rates, as 

periodically adjusted, as other properties that receive such services within the 

Township’s jurisdictional boundaries. 

D. Township Ordinances. All Township ordinances now in effect or hereafter 

adopted or amended, shall apply to the transferred property, its owners, 

developers, and occupants. 

Page 5 of 146



4 
 

E. Taxes. All taxes, including but not limited to ad valorem, real, and personal 

property taxes, shall be assessed, levied, and collected under the jurisdiction of 

the Township, but subject to the revenue sharing provisions subsequently set 

forth in this Agreement.  

F. Special Assessments. All special assessments, including but not limited to the 

Township’s Fire Department Special Assessment, levied under Act 33 of the Public 

Acts of 1951, as amended, MCL 41.801, et seq., shall be assessed, levied, and 

collected under the jurisdiction of the Township. Special assessments shall not be 

subject to revenue sharing of any kind or nature.  

G. Voting. Any person claiming residency within the transferred property shall be 

entitled to vote at all public elections held within the Township on the same basis 

as all other persons claiming residency within the Township’s jurisdictional legal 

boundaries. 

H. Addresses. The Township may assign addresses and/or fire numbers to new 

parcels, lots, or structures created or constructed within the area comprising the 

transferred property. 

4. Revenue Sharing. The Township shall assess, levy, and collect ad valorem real and 

personal property taxes as set forth in Section 3(E) above. The Township shall pay to 

the City that portion of the Township’s general operating millage actually collected 

by the Township, or in the case of delinquent real property taxes, the County of 

Marquette, that is assessed and levied against each property tax parcel physically 

located within the boundaries comprising the transferred property each year for the 

duration of this Agreement and any renewals. The Township shall be entitled to retain 

Page 6 of 146



5 
 

any administrative fees charged to the taxpayer as part of the tax collection process. 

Any interest or penalties shall be prorated between the Township and City at the 

same rate that the Township’s general operating millage bears to the total tax bill for 

each affected parcel. The Township’s payment shall be based solely on the Township’s 

general operating millage and shall not include any extra voted millage (such as law 

enforcement or recreation millage), any “pass through” millages levied by others 

(such as Peter While Public Library or the Iron Ore Heritage Trail Authority), or any 

special assessments of any kind or nature. Payments from the Township to the City 

shall be at the same time and in the same manner as the Township Treasurer makes 

distributions to other taxing jurisdictions. In the event that it becomes necessary for 

the Township to refund any portion of real or personal property taxes paid, whether 

as a result of Tax Tribunal proceedings or otherwise, the Township shall provide 

supporting documentation to the City and the City shall promptly remit such funds in 

the manner directed. 

5. Term of Agreement.  

A. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for fifty (50) years. The Agreement may 

be renewed for additional periods of not more than fifty (50) years upon approval 

and written agreement by the respective legislative bodies of the Township and 

City. 

B. This Agreement may be terminated prior to its expiration by approval and written 

agreement of the respective legislative bodies of the Township and City then 

holding office, specifying the reasons for termination and the effective date of 

termination. 

Page 7 of 146



6 
 

C.  In the event that Longyear Realty Corporation, or any successor entity formed for 

the purpose of developing the transferred property (“Longyear”), has not 

commenced construction of the development including site work, infrastructure 

and/or roadwork as approved in the final development plan by the earlier of (i) 

two years after the date that the Township enters into a final development 

agreement with Longyear and Longyear has obtained all necessary governmental 

permits and approvals for the development, or (ii) four years after the effective 

date described in Section 9, then this Agreement shall terminate. 

6. Jurisdiction Upon Expiration or Termination. Upon expiration or termination of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction over the transferred property shall automatically revert and 

be transferred back to the City for all purposes, subject to the following provisions. 

A. Upon expiration of termination of this Agreement, the transferred property shall 

be rezoned by the City based upon the City’s zoning designation that most closely 

matches the use of the transferred property at that time. 

B. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, the Township shall retain full 

ownership of all components of the Marquette Township public Watermain 

System located within the transferred property, including but not limited to any 

and all watermain pipes, plumbing, conduits, hydrants, connections, valves, 

hardware, and appurtenances located within dedicated public or private rights-

of-way or utility easements, but excluding all lateral lines, plumbing, connections, 

hardware or other components of the Watermain System located within any 

building structure, or between the watermain and any building structure. 

Page 8 of 146



7 
 

C. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, the Township shall retain full 

ownership of the Marquette Township public Sanitary Sewer System located 

within the transferred property, including but not limited to all sewer main pipes, 

plumbing, drains, pumps, lift stations, grinders, manholes, air relief structures, 

connections, valves, hardware, and appurtenances located within dedicated 

public or private rights-of-way or utility easements, but excluding all lateral lines, 

plumbing, connections, hardware, or other components of the Sanity Sewer 

System located within any building structure, or between the sewer main and any 

building structure. 

7. No Annexation or Other Transfer. While this Agreement is in effect, no annexation or 

other method of transfer shall take place for any portion of the property conditionally 

transferred under this Agreement, consistent with the prohibitions contained within 

Section 9 of Act 425, MCL 124.29.  

8. Enforcement.  In the event that either the Township or the City fails to comply with 

the terms and provisions of this Agreement for more than ninety (90) days from the 

date of written notification by the party alleging non-compliance, either party may 

commence a civil action in the Circuit Court for the County of Marquette, Michigan, to 

assert any available remedies in law or in equity, which by means of example and not 

limitation may include monetary damages, specific performance, injunctive relief, 

mandamus, or a request for a declaratory judgement, and which may include return 

of the transferred property to the City. 

9. Effective Date.  

Page 9 of 146



8 
 

A. This Agreement and the conditional property transfer shall become effective upon 

approval by both the Township Board and the City Commission, and by the filing 

required under Subsection 9(B). The Township and the City shall each conduct a 

public hearing regarding the proposed conditional transfer of property, noticed in 

conformity with the requirements of the Open Meetings Act, Act 267 of the Public 

Acts of 1976, MCL 15.261 et seq. The Township and City may enter into this 

Agreement thirty (30) days after the last public hearing required under Section 4 

of Act 425, MCL 124.24, has been conducted, unless a qualifying referendum 

petition is received by the City within the aforesaid thirty (30) days. 

B. The Marquette Township Clerk shall file a duplicate original of this Agreement 

with the Marquette County Clerk and the Michigan Secretary of State. A copy of 

this Agreement, certified by the Marquette County Clerk or by the Michigan 

Secretary of State, shall be prima facie evidence of the conditional transfer of the 

property from the City to the Township. 

10.  Amendments to the Agreement. The terms and provisions of this Agreement, except 

for the boundaries of the transferred property, may be amended by mutual written 

agreement approved by the Township Board and the City Commission, and recorded 

with the Marquette County Clerk and Michigan Secretary of State as required for the 

original Agreement. 

11.  Interpretation. The terms and provisions of this Agreement have been jointly 

negotiated and agreed to with the assistance of counsel and with equal opportunity 

for input by both the Township and the City, such that it shall not be interpreted or 

construed against the drafter. 

Page 10 of 146



9 
 

12.  Section Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for reference only, and shall 

not in any manner affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

13.  Entire Agreement. This written Agreement represents the entire agreement between 

the parties for the conditional transfer of the above-described property from the City 

to the Township. Any oral statements or prior writings not incorporated into this 

Agreement are superseded and shall be of no force or effect. 

14.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and 

each counterpart shall be considered a valid original. 

15.   Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court or 

administrative tribunal of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable for 

any reason, that provision shall be deemed severable and the remaining portions of 

this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect to the greatest extent possible in 

order to carry out the intentions of the parties. 

16.  Notices. All notices, demands, or communications required or desired to be given 

under this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered personally or by ordinary 

first-class mail with proper postage affixed, to the attention of the following Township 

and City representatives: 

Charter Township of Marquette 
Attention Township Manager 
Marquette Township Hall 
1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, MI 49855 
 

Charter Township of Marquette 
Attention Township Supervisor 
Marquette Township Hall 
1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, MI 49855 
 

City of Marquette 
Attention City Manager 
Marquette City Hall 
300 West Baraga Avenue 
Marquette, MI 49855 

City of Marquette 
Attention City Mayor 
Marquette City Hall 
300 West Baraga Avenue 
Marquette, MI 49855 

 

Page 11 of 146



10 
 

Separate copies of any such notice shall be provided and delivered to each designated 

representative. The parties may, by written notice, designate any further or different 

persons, officers, or addresses to which subsequent notices, demands, or 

communications shall be delivered. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by the authority 

granted to the following officers or representative of each governing body. 

 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MARQUETTE 
    
 
______________________________________________ 
Lyn Durant, Township Supervisor   
 
 
______________________________________________  
Randy Ritari, Township Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )  ss. 
COUNTY OF MARQUETTE ) 
 
 On this _____ day of ____________________, 2022, before me, a Notary Public in and for the 
County of Marquette, appeared Lyn Durant and Randy Ritari, upon first being duly sworn, 
who verified that they are the Supervisor and Clerk, respectively, of the Charter Township of 
Marquette. 
 
             
           , Notary Public 
      Marquette County, Michigan 
      My Commission Expires:      
      Acting in Marquette County, Michigan  
  
 
CITY OF MARQUETTE 
 
 
______________________________________________ 

Page 12 of 146



11 
 

Cody O. Mayer, Mayor 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Kyle Whitney, City Clerk 
 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )  ss. 
COUNTY OF MARQUETTE ) 
 
 On this _____ day of ____________________, 2022, before me, a Notary Public in and for the 
County of Marquette, appeared Cody O. Mayer and Kyle Whitney, upon first being duly 
sworn, who verified that they are the Mayor and Clerk, respectively, of the City of Marquette. 
 
             
           , Notary Public 
      Marquette County, Michigan 
      My Commission Expires:      
      Acting in Marquette County, Michigan  
 
 
Approved as to Substance:   Approved as to Form: 
 
 
            
Karen M. Kovacs    Suzanne C. Larsen 
 
 
Drafted by: 
Roger W. Zappa (P36610) 
BENSINGER, COTANT & MENKES, P.C. 
122 W. Bluff St. 
Marquette, MI  49855 
(906) 225-1000 
 

Page 13 of 146



1

MARQUETTE TOWNSHIP BOARD
MINUTES

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2022 - 6:30 PM
MARQUETTE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY CENTER

 
Call to order:
Supervisor Durant called the Meeting to Order at 6:30PM

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call
Members present:       Lyn Durant, Supervisor
                                    Randy Ritari, Clerk
                                    Ernest Johnson, Treasurer
                                    Dan Everson, Trustee
                                    John Markes, Trustee
                                   
Members absent:        Karl Kytta, Trustee (excused)
                                    Linda Winslow, Trustee (excused)

Staff present:               Jon Kangas, Township Manager
                                    Roger Zappa, Township Attorney
                                    Lenny Bodenus, Superintendent of Public Works (Teleconference)

Committee Members
Present:                       Tom Broken, Township Library Advisory Council

Public Comment (3 minutes each):
None

Board Member Comment in Response to Public Comment:
None

Public Hearings:

FY 2023 Township Budget and Fee Schedule
Supervisor Durant opened the Public Hearing at 6:31PM

No Comments From the Public

Page 14 of 146



2

Supervisor Durant closed the Public Hearing at 6:35PM

FY2023 Truth in Taxation Hearing (Tax Levy)
Supervisor Durant opened the Public Hearing at 6:35PM

No Comments From the Public

Supervisor Durant closed the Public Hearing at 6:37PM

Consent Agenda:

Approval of Work Session and Regular Meeting Minutes of November 15, 2022

Bills Payable in the amount of $255,175.19.  Checks 162927 to 162989.  Note any voided checks

Received Committee and Other Reports

Election Statistics 1990-Present

Correspondence not Requiring Board Action

MCSWMA Abbreviated 11-16-22 Packet

Univ of MI-CLOSUP 11-16-2 Survey Results

Financial

Budget Amendment 2022-07

              Budget Amendment No. 2022-07
December 6, 2022

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MARQUETTE
FY 2022 BUDGET RESOLUTION

     WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the Marquette Township Board to establish General and Special Appropriations Acts for the purpose of 
budgeting Township finances in a manner which does not allow expenditure, including any accrued deficits, to exceed revenues, including any 
available unappropriated surpluses, and,

Page 15 of 146



3

     WHEREAS, the Marquette Township Board recognizes that unforeseen activities may require amendments to these Appropriations Acts, 
such amendments shall be made by either formal resolution of the Marquette Township Board; or, by a ten percent (10%) of budget center 
contingency transfer authorized by the Township Manager, in such a manner so as not to allow the total expenditures, including accrued deficits, 
to exceed revenues and unappropriated surpluses; and,
     WHEREAS, the Marquette Township Appropriations Acts for 2022 do not permit deviations which cause expenditures for any activity to 
exceed budgeted amounts without amendment to the Act by the Marquette Township Board or the aforementioned contingency transfer; and,
     WHEREAS, the Marquette Township Board has duly reviewed the budgets for the General Appropriations Act and the Special 
Appropriations Act, both Acts include all funds of the Charter Township of Marquette, at public hearings of the Marquette Township Board,
     THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Marquette Township Board hereby amends the Appropriations Acts for 2022 in accordance 
with budgetary information presented to this Board and the limitations defined within this Resolution.

    Current Budget      Amended Budget       Change

General Fund

  Expenditures

       Capital – Bldg & Grounds 0 8,000 8,000

  Fund Balance 1,479,179 1,471,179 (8,000)

Authorization is requested to increase the General Fund Capital-Buildings & Grounds due to Township parking lot maintenance,  Decrease is 
from the GF Fund Balance.

MOTION:  To approve the Consent Agenda as presented
Motion – Treasurer Johnson
Second – Trustee Markes
                                                                                    Roll Call Vote:
                                                                                                Supervisor Durant - Aye
                                                                                                Clerk Ritari - Aye                 
                                                                                                Treasurer Johnson -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Markes -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Winslow- Absent
                                                                                                Trustee Everson - Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Kytta - Absent            
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Approval of the Agenda:

MOTION:  To approve the Regular Agenda as presented.
Motion – Clerk Ritari
Second – Trustee Everson
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Board Education/Privileged Comment:

Library Report

Page 16 of 146



4

Tom Broken, Township Library Advisory Council, gave a brief report.

Community Linkage :
Supervisor Durant, commented about the issues that they were having at the Landfill in regards to what 
folks are putting in their recycling bins.

Policy Discussion, Consideration and Development:

Consider Two Hires for Fire Department (paid-on-call)
(Background from Fire Chief Shanahan)

MOTION:  Accept the recommendation of the Fire Chief and Township Supervisor and hire 
Nathan Williams and Shannah Porath as Probationary Firefighters/EMTs.
Motion – Supervisor Durant
Second – Clerk Ritari
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Consider Emergency Repair of Well Pump
(Background from Superintendent Bodenus)

MOTION:  Approve Kleinman Well Drilling to install a new pump and accessories to replace the 
failed well pump in the amount of $30,606.81.
Motion – Supervisor Durant
Second – Clerk Ritari
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Consider Adoption of the FY2023 Budget
(Background from Manager Kangas)

MOTION:  Adopt the FY 2023 Budget as presented.
Motion – Supervisor Durant
Second – Clerk Ritari
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Consider Adoption of the FY2023 Tax Levies
(Background from Manager Kangas)

MOTION:  Adopt the FY 2023 Tax Levies as presented.

Page 17 of 146



5

Motion – Supervisor Durant
Second – Clerk Ritari
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Consider FY2023 Budget Resolution and Township General Appropriations Act
(Background from Manager Kangas)

TOWNSHIP GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MARQUETTE

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH A GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT FOR THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MARQUETTE; TO DEFINE THE POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MARQUETTE OFFICERS IN RELATION TO THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE 
BUDGET; AND TO PROVIDE REMEDIES FOR REFUSAL OR NEGLECT TO COMPLY WITH THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THIS RESOLUTION.
 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MARQUETTE RESOLVES:
 
SECTION 1: TITLE.
 
This Resolution shall be known as the Charter Township of Marquette General Appropriations Act.
 
SECTION 2: CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER.
 
The Township Manager shall be the Chief Administrative Officer and shall perform the duties of the Chief 
Administrative Officer enumerated in this Act.
 
SECTION 3: FISCAL OFFICER.
 
The Township Clerk shall be the Fiscal Officer and shall perform the duties of the Fiscal Officer enumerated in this 
Act.
 
SECTION 4:       PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE BUDGET.
 
Pursuant to MCLA 42.26, notice of a public hearing on the proposed budget was published in a newspaper of 
general circulation on Saturday, November 19, 2022, and a public hearing on the proposed budget was held on 
December 6, 2022.
 
SECTION 5:       ESTIMATED REVENUES.
 
Estimated Township general fund revenues for fiscal year 2023, including a Charter Township millage of 4.8078 
mills; voter-authorized millage of 2.4502 mills; and various miscellaneous revenues shall total $2,644,600.
                                                                                                                                                                Estimated
                Fund                                       Purpose                                  Millage   Revenue
 
                General Fund                      General Operations                           4.8078                   $1,343,257
                General Fund                      Roads                                                   1.4702                  $   410,761

Page 18 of 146



6

                General Fund                      Law Enforcement                               0.3920                  $   109,521
                
                Fire Fund                             Fire Apparatus                                  0.5880                   $   158,597
                Fire Fund                             General Ops (Act 33)                        2.8000                   $   764,157
 
                DDA Fund                            General Operations                           0.5000                   $     51,753

 
SECTION 6: MILLAGE LEVY.
 
The Charter Township of Marquette Board shall cause to be levied and collected the general property tax on all real 
and personal property within the Township upon the current tax roll an amount equal to 7.7580 mills.
 
SECTION 7:       ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES.
 
Estimated Township general fund expenditures for fiscal year 2023 for the various cost centers are as follows:
 

GENERAL FUND

Revenues $2,644,600

Expenditures by Activity:

Township Board $33,037  

Professional Services $98,000  

Supervisor $17,699  

Township Manager $160,636  

Clerk $102,512  

Board of Review $1,629  

Treasurer $16,646  

Assessor $197,841  

Elections $0  

Building & Grounds $207,939  

General Service Administration $169,427  

Law Enforcement $227,000  

Street Lighting $44,500  

Street Signs $1,200  

Planning $243,443  

Zoning Board of Appeals $2,484  

Recreation $74,064  

Page 19 of 146



7

Insurance & Bonds $8,500  

Capital $110,000  

Debt Service $278,244  

Transfer Out $561,403  

Appropriations $24,500  

Total Expenditures  $2,580,703

Estimated Net Difference $63,897  

Estimated 2022 Carryover $752,167  

Projected 2023 Fund Balance $816,064  

 
 
Estimated Township SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS revenues and expenditures for fiscal year 2023 are as follows:
 
FIRE FUND
 

Revenues                                                                                                              $922,754
Expenditures
 
                Building & Grounds                            $  28,250
                Administration – Fire                           $232,705
                Fire Marshall                                        $168,333
                Fire Fighting                                         $182,000               

Vehicles                                                 $  53,600
Capital                                                   $  15,269

                Transfer Out (Debt)                             $  84,000
                                                
Total Expenditures                                                                                              $ 764,157
 
                Revenues Over Expenditures                                                              $ 158,597
                Estimated 2022 Fund Balance                                                            -$ 120,000*
                Projected 2023 Fund Balance                                                             $   38,597
                *Loan from General Fund
 

LIQUOR LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
 
                Revenues                                                                                                             $    7,000
                Expenditures                                                                                                       $    7,000
 
                                Revenues Over Expenditures                                                           $           0
                                Estimated 2022 Fund Balance                                                          $           0   
                                Projected 2023 Fund Balance                                                           $           0 
 
TOWNSHIP IMPROVEMENTS FUND
 
      Revenues                                                                                                            $561,403

Page 20 of 146



8

                Expenditures                                                                                                     $561,403
                                Revenues Over Expenditures                                                            $           0
                                Estimated 2022 Fund Balance                                                          $150,000*
                                Projected 2023 Fund Balance                                                           $150,000
                                *Forestville Road paving.
 
LIBRARY FUND
 
                Revenues                                                                                                              $250,280
                Expenditures                                                                                                        $250,280
 
                                Revenues Over Expenditures                                                             $           0
                                Estimated 2022 Fund Balance                                                            $           0
                                Projected 2023 Fund Balance                                                             $           0                               
                                                                                                                                                
 
Estimated Township ENTERPRISE FUNDS revenues and expenditures for fiscal year 2023 are as follows:
 
WASTEWATER FUND
 
                Revenues                                                                                                         $1,249,918
                Expenditures                                                                                                    $1,167,156
 
                                Revenues Over Expenditures                                                           $82,762
                                Estimated 2022 Reserve                                                $3,623,159
                                Projected 2023 Reserve                                                 $3,705,921
 
WATER FUND
 
                Revenues                                                                                                              $1,572,461
                Expenditures                                                                                                        $1,559,900
 
                                Revenues Over Expenditures                                             $12,561
                                Estimated 2022 Reserve                                                     $2,087,817 
                                Projected 2023 Reserve                                                      $2,100,378 
 
SOLID WASTE FUND
 
                Revenues                                                                                                                $499,491
                Expenditures                                                                                                           $494,642
 
                                Revenues Over Expenditures                                                                  $4,849
                                Estimated 2022 Reserve                                                       $507,445
                                Projected 2023 Reserve                                                        $512,294 
 
STORMWATER FUND
 
                Revenues                                                                                                                 $2,000
                Expenditures                                                                                                            $2,000
 
                                Revenues Over Expenditures                                                            $            0

Page 21 of 146



9

                                Estimated 2022 Net Position                                                             $   14,032    
                                Estimated 2023 Net Position                                                             $   14,032
 
METRO AUTHORITY FUND
 
                Revenues                                                                                                              $    6,329
                Expenditures                                                                                                        $     6,329
                                Revenues Over Expenditures                                                               $           0
                                Estimated 2022 Reserve                                                     $  12,513 
                                Projected 2023 Reserve                                                      $  12,513
 

 
SECTION 8:  ADOPTION OF BUDGET BY REFERENCE.
 
The general fund budget of the Charter Township of Marquette is hereby adopted by reference, with revenues and 
activity expenditures as indicated in Sections 5 and 7 of the Act.
 
SECTION 9:  ADOPTION OF BUDGET BY COST CENTER.
 
The Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Marquette adopts the 2023 fiscal year general fund budget by 
cost center.  Township officials responsible for the expenditures authorized in the budget may expend Township 
funds up to, but not to exceed, the total appropriation authorized for each cost center, and may make transfers 
among the various line items contained in the cost center appropriation.  However, no transfers of appropriations 
for line items related to personnel or capital outlays may be made without prior Township Board approval by 
budget amendment.
 
SECTION 10: APPROPRIATION NOT A MANDATE TO SPEND.
 
Appropriations will be deemed maximum authorizations to incur expenditures.   The Fiscal Officer shall exercise 
supervision and control to ensure that expenditures are within appropriations and shall not issue any Township 
order for expenditures that exceed appropriations.
 
SECTION 11: TRANSFER AUTHORITY.
 
The Chief Administrative Officer shall have the authority to make transfers among the various cost centers without 
prior Township Board approval, if the amount to be transferred does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the budget 
center appropriation from which the transfer is to be made.  The Township Board shall be notified at its next 
meeting of any such transfers made and reserves the right to modify, amend, or nullify any such transfers made. 
 Under no circumstances may the total general fund budget be changed without prior Township Board approval.
 
SECTION 12: PERIODIC FISCAL REPORTS.
 
The Fiscal Officer shall transmit to the Township Board at the end of each month, a report of financial operations 
including, but not limited to:
 
a)            A summary statement of the actual financial condition of the general fund at the end of the previous 

month;
 
b)            A summary statement showing the receipts and expenditures and encumbrances for the previous month 

and for the current fiscal year to the end of the previous month;

Page 22 of 146



10

 
 c)            A detailed list of:

 
1.             Expected revenues by major source as estimated in the budget; actual receipts to date for the 

current fiscal year compared with actual receipts for the same period in the prior fiscal year; the 
balance of estimated revenues to be collected in the then current fiscal year; and any revisions in 
revenue estimates resulting from collection experience to date.

 

 
2.             For each cost center: the amount appropriated; the amount charged to each appropriation in the 

previous month and for the current fiscal year and as compared with the same period in the prior 
fiscal year; the unencumbered balance of appropriations; and any revisions in the estimate of 
expenditures.

 
SECTION 13: LIMIT ON OBLIGATIONS AND PAYMENTS.
 
No obligation shall be incurred against, and no payment shall be made from any appropriation account unless there 
is a sufficient unencumbered balance in the appropriation and sufficient funds are or will be available to meet the 
obligation.
 
SECTION 14: BUDGET MONITORING.
 
Whenever it appears to the Chief Administrative Officer or the Township Board that the actual and probable 
revenues in any fund will be less than the estimated revenues upon which appropriations from such fund were 
based, and when it appears that expenditures shall exceed an appropriation, the Chief Administrative Officer shall 
present to the Township Board recommendations to prevent expenditures from exceeding available revenues or 
appropriations for the current fiscal year.  Such recommendations shall include proposals for reducing 
appropriations, increasing revenues, or both.
 
SECTION 15: VIOLATIONS OF THIS ACT.
 
Any obligation incurred or payment authorized in violation of this Resolution shall be void and shall subject any 
responsible official(s) or employee(s) to disciplinary action as outlined in Public Act 621 of 1978 and the Charter 
Township of Marquette Personnel Manual or Union Agreement, as applicable.
 
SECTION 16: BOARD ADOPTION.
 
Motion made by            , seconded by            , to adopt the foregoing Resolution. 
 
Upon roll call vote, the following voted aye:   
 
  
The following voted nay:  
 
 
 
The Township Supervisor declared the motion carried and the Resolution duly adopted on the 6th day of December 
2022.
 
 

Page 23 of 146



11

_____________________________________
Randy Ritari, Township Clerk

MOTION:  Approve the FY2023 Marquette Charter Township General Appropriations Act, as 
presented.
Motion – Clerk Ritari
Second – Trustee Markes
                                                                                    Roll Call Vote:
                                                                                                Supervisor Durant - Aye
                                                                                                Clerk Ritari - Aye                 
                                                                                                Treasurer Johnson -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Markes -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Winslow- Absent
                                                                                                Trustee Everson -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Kytta - Absent            
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Consider FY2023 Fee Schedule
(Background from Manager Kangas)

MOTION:  Adopt the FY 2023 Fee Schedule as presented.
Motion – Clerk Ritari
Second – Trustee Markes
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Consider Resolution of Salary for the Township Supervisor for FY 2023

RESOLUTION FOR OFFICERS' SALARIES

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Marquette Charter Township, Marquette County, Michigan, held 
at the Township Hall on the 6th day of December, 2022 at 6:30 p.m.

PRESENT:            

 
ABSENT:              

SUPERVISOR'S SALARY

 
______________ moved, seconded by ____________, that the salary for the office of Supervisor shall be set in the 
amount of $15,303.00 for the Fiscal Year 2023, which begins January 1st, 2023, and each year thereafter until 
subsequently adjusted.

Page 24 of 146



12

 

ADOPTED BY ROLL CALL VOTE:

YEAS:   

NAYS:  

ABSENT: 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN                    )

                                                                )  ss.

COUNTY OF MARQUETTE           )               

Randy J. Ritari, the duly qualified and acting Township Clerk of the Charter Township of Marquette, 
Marquette County, Michigan, DOES HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain 
proceedings taken by the Township Board of said Township at a regular meeting held on the 6th day of December, 
2022. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                

         Township Clerk – Randy J. Ritari 

MOTION:  To approve the Resolution of Salary for the Township Supervisor for FY 2023.
Motion – Clerk Ritari
Second – Trustee Markes
                                                                                    Roll Call Vote:
                                                                                                Supervisor Durant - Aye
                                                                                                Clerk Ritari - Aye                 
                                                                                                Treasurer Johnson -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Markes -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Winslow- Absent
                                                                                                Trustee Everson - Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Kytta - Absent            
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Consider Resolution of Salary for the Township Clerk for FY 2023
(Background from Manager Kangas)

Page 25 of 146



13

RESOLUTION FOR OFFICERS' SALARIES
 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Marquette Charter Township, Marquette County, Michigan, held 
at the Township Hall on the 6th day of December, 2022 at 6:30 p.m.

PRESENT:            
 
ABSENT:              

CLERK’S SALARY
 
____________________moved, seconded by ______________, that the salary for the office of Clerk shall be set in 
the amount of $15,303.00 for the Fiscal Year 2023, which begins January 1st, 2023, and each year thereafter until 
subsequently adjusted.

 
ADOPTED BY ROLL CALL VOTE:
 
YEAS:         

NAYS:                  
 
ABSENT: 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN                    )
                                                                )  ss.
COUNTY OF MARQUETTE           )               

 
Randy J. Ritari, the duly qualified and acting Township Clerk of the Charter Township of Marquette, 

Marquette County, Michigan, DOES HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain 
proceedings taken by the Township Board of said Township at a regular meeting held on the 6th day of December, 
2022. 
                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                Township Clerk – Randy J. Ritari 

MOTION:  To approve the Resolution of Salary for the Township Clerk for FY 2023.
Motion –Trustee Markes
Second – Trustee Everson
                                                                                    Roll Call Vote:
                                                                                                Supervisor Durant - Aye
                                                                                                Clerk Ritari - Aye                 
                                                                                                Treasurer Johnson -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Markes -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Winslow- Absent
                                                                                                Trustee Everson - Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Kytta - Absent            
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Page 26 of 146



14

Consider Resolution of Salary for the Township Treasurer for FY 2023
(Background from Manager Kangas)

RESOLUTION FOR OFFICERS' SALARIES

 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Marquette Charter Township, Marquette County, Michigan, held 
at the Township Hall on the 6th day of December, 2022 at 6:30 p.m.

PRESENT:            

 
ABSENT:              

TREASURER’S SALARY

 
____________________moved, seconded by ______________, that the salary for the office of Treasurer shall be 
set in the amount of $10,384.00 for the Fiscal Year 2023, which begins January 1st, 2023, and each year thereafter 
until subsequently adjusted.

 

ADOPTED BY ROLL CALL VOTE:

 YEAS:         

NAYS:                  

ABSENT: 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN                    )

                                                                )  ss.

COUNTY OF MARQUETTE           )               

 

Randy J. Ritari, the duly qualified and acting Township Clerk of the Charter Township of Marquette, 
Marquette County, Michigan, DOES HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain 
proceedings taken by the Township Board of said Township at a regular meeting held on the 6th day of December, 
2022. 

                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                                

Page 27 of 146



15

            Township Clerk – Randy J. Ritari 

MOTION:  To approve the Resolution of Salary for the Township Treasurer for FY 2023.
Motion –Trustee Markes
Second – Trustee Everson
                                                                                    Roll Call Vote:
                                                                                                Supervisor Durant - Aye
                                                                                                Clerk Ritari - Aye                 
                                                                                                Treasurer Johnson -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Markes -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Winslow- Absent
                                                                                                Trustee Everson - Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Kytta - Absent            
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Consider Resolution of Salary for the Township Trustees for FY 2023
(Background from Manager Kangas)

RESOLUTION FOR OFFICERS' SALARIES
 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Marquette Charter Township, Marquette County, Michigan, held 
at the Township Hall on the 6th day of December, 2022 at 6:30 p.m.

PRESENT:            
 
ABSENT:              

TRUSTEE’S SALARY
 
____________________moved, seconded by _________________, that the salary for the office of Trustee shall be 
set in the amount of $4,154.00 for the Fiscal Year 2023, which begins January 1st, 2023, and each year thereafter 
until subsequently adjusted.

 
ADOPTED BY ROLL CALL VOTE:
 
YEAS:         

NAYS:    
 
ABSENT: 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN                    )
                                                                )  ss.
COUNTY OF MARQUETTE           )               

 
Randy J. Ritari, the duly qualified and acting Township Clerk of the Charter Township of Marquette, 

Page 28 of 146



16

Marquette County, Michigan, DOES HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain 
proceedings taken by the Township Board of said Township at a regular meeting held on the 6th day of December, 
2022. 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                Township Clerk – Randy J. Ritari 

MOTION:  To approve the Resolution of Salary for the Township Trustees for FY 2023.
Motion –Trustee Markes
Second – Trustee Everson
                                                                                    Roll Call Vote:
                                                                                                Supervisor Durant - Aye
                                                                                                Clerk Ritari - Aye                 
                                                                                                Treasurer Johnson -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Markes -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Winslow- Absent
                                                                                                Trustee Everson - Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Kytta - Absent            
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Consider Resolution of Salary for the Township  Deputy Treasurer/Deputy Clerk for FY 2023
(Background from Manager Kangas)

RESOLUTION FOR OFFICERS' SALARIES

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Marquette Charter Township, Marquette County, 
Michigan, held at the Township Hall on the 6th day of December, 2022 at 6:30 p.m.

PRESENT:  

ABSENT:             

DEPUTY TREASURER’S AND DEPUTY CLERK’S SALARY

____________________moved, seconded by _________________, that the salary for the office of Deputy 
Treasurer and Deputy Clerk shall be set in the amount of $515.00 for the Fiscal Year 2023, which begins January 
1st, 2023, and each year thereafter until subsequently adjusted. The Salary is to be Paid in the 1st Pay Period in 
November 2023.

 

ADOPTED BY ROLL CALL VOTE:

YEAS:   

Page 29 of 146



17

NAYS:  

ABSENT: 

STATE OF MICHIGAN                    )

                                                                )  ss.

COUNTY OF MARQUETTE           )               

 

Randy J. Ritari, the duly qualified and acting Township Clerk of the Charter Township of Marquette, 
Marquette County, Michigan, DOES HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain 
proceedings taken by the Township Board of said Township at a regular meeting held on the 6th day of December, 
2022. 

                                                                                                                                                                                

          Township Clerk – Randy J. Ritari 

MOTION:  To approve the Resolution of Salary for the Township Deputy Treasurer/Deputy Clerk 
for FY 2023.
Motion –Trustee Markes
Second – Trustee Everson
                                                                                    Roll Call Vote:
                                                                                                Supervisor Durant - Aye
                                                                                                Clerk Ritari - Aye                 
                                                                                                Treasurer Johnson -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Markes -Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Winslow- Absent
                                                                                                Trustee Everson - Aye
                                                                                                Trustee Kytta - Absent            
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Consider Changing Township Board Meetings from Tuesday to Wednesday Nights
(Background from Clerk Ritari)

MOTION:  To approve the Township Board Meeting Schedule with changing Board Meetings 
from the 1st and 3rd Tuesday to the 1st and 3rd Wednesday nights in year 2023. 
Motion – Trustee Markes
Second – Clerk Ritari
                                                                                    Carried (4-1)

Page 30 of 146



18

                                                                                    Absent (2)

Consider Purchase of Quadient Folder Inserter
(Background from Manager Kangas)

MOTION:  To approve the 2023 purchase of a two-tray Quadient Folder Inserter for the not-to-
exceed price of $10,591 from Office Enterprises Inc.
Motion –  Trustee Markes
Second – Treasurer Johnson
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

(Tentative) Schedule Public Hearing for Proposed Act 425 Agreement with City of Marquette
(Background from Manager Kangas)

MOTION:  To schedule a Public Hearing for the proposed PA 425 agreement with the City of 
Marquette for the regular Township Board Meeting of December 20, 2022.
Motion –Clerk Ritari
Second – Treasurer Johnson
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Assurance of Organizational Performance:

Board - Committee Updates

Planning Commission
None

Roads Committee
None

Events Committee
None

MOTION:  To move the start times for Board Meetings in year 2023 from 6:30PM to 5:30PM.
Motion – Trustee Markes
Second – Trustee Everson
                                                                                    Carried (5-0)
                                                                                    Absent (2)

Page 31 of 146



19

Public Comment (3 Minutes maximum):
None

Meeting Wrap-up:

Announcements
Clerk Ritari - gave some election information for the residents.

Manager’s Report
Manager Kangas, presented his written report.

Review of Motions Passed & Assignments, if any
Clerk Ritari, reviewed all motions from the meeting and any action items that needed to be done.

Items for Future Agenda 
425 Agreement with the City of Marquette, Committee Recommendations, Fair Ave Driveway 
complaint.

Board Member Comment 
None

Adjournment:
MOTION:  To Adjourn the meeting.
Motion –Trustee Everson
Second – Clerk Ritari   
                                                                                   Carried (5-0)
                                                                                   Absent (2)

Supervisor Durant adjourned the meeting at 8:04PM.

______________________________ _______________________________
Randy J. Ritari, Township Clerk   Lyn J. Durant, Township Supervisor 

Page 32 of 146



Page 33 of 146



Page 34 of 146



Page 35 of 146



Page 36 of 146



Page 37 of 146



Page 38 of 146



Page 39 of 146



Page 40 of 146



Page 41 of 146



Page 42 of 146



Page 43 of 146



Page 44 of 146



Page 45 of 146



Page 46 of 146



Page 47 of 146



Page 48 of 146



Page 49 of 146



Page 50 of 146



Page 51 of 146



Page 52 of 146



UM ecologist has an idea for 
protecting Michigan forests as 
climate changes

Carol Thompson
The Detroit News 12-6-22
Hear this story
View Comments

A University of Michigan ecologist has advice for protecting Michigan's trees from the 

increasingly hot and dry weather that climate change will bring to the Midwest — let the trees 

get old.

Old trees are more resilient to extreme weather than their younger counterparts, according to a 

study by Tsun Fung Au, a postdoctoral fellow at the UM Institute for Global Change Biology 

published in the journal "Nature" on Thursday.

To understand how different trees weathered drought and hot temperatures, Au and his 

research partners analyzed more than 20,000 canopy trees, or those tall enough to get direct 

sunlight in a crowded forest, across five continents. They used tree rings to see how the trees of 

varying ages responded to droughts over the past century. 

They found older trees — a designation that varies in years depending on species but in general 

means a tree that is more than 140 years old — were more able to withstand the dry, hot 

weather that will become more likely as the climate continues to change. 

"We should stop cutting down forests anymore, because, as our paper has shown, even though 

we don't have much older forest, if we allow time to let them get older they will develop the 

resistance to climate extremes," Au said.

Like much of the Midwestern U.S., Michigan was heavily logged during the late 19th century. 

Michigan Department of Natural Resources Forest Planning Manager David Price calls it "the 

big cut era."

The state's forests are recovering, he said, and on average they continue to grow denser and 

older.

Page 53 of 146

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.detroitnews.com_staff_4395808002_carol-2Dthompson_&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=IQMlyjyX8pNQ3ggAcjS_lucfrWW9vnrkbbcaWjr1WM8&m=58n5_YS4_NDHb8Sz49LHAoMXgGypCpqG9fGxWZAHJ_s&s=Jwejrvrh9Ng2GbgoyyMWUy-cEhpHofJdewvpk8ZlJ0E&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__cm.detroitnews.com_comment_-3FstoryUrl-3Dhttps-253A-252F-252Fwww.detroitnews.com-252Fstory-252Fnews-252Flocal-252Fmichigan-252F2022-252F12-252F04-252Funiversity-2Dof-2Dmichigan-2Decologist-2Dhas-2Didea-2Dfor-2Dprotecting-2Dmichigan-2Dforests-2Das-2Dclimate-2Dchanges-252F69689552007-252F-26marketName-3Ddetroitnews-26commentsopen-3Dfalse&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=IQMlyjyX8pNQ3ggAcjS_lucfrWW9vnrkbbcaWjr1WM8&m=58n5_YS4_NDHb8Sz49LHAoMXgGypCpqG9fGxWZAHJ_s&s=M2OwDh2uKveH3BCrOdtEUbpyL2h8q-8OXjfyQJwNktU&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.detroitnews.com_staff_4395808002_carol-2Dthompson_&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=IQMlyjyX8pNQ3ggAcjS_lucfrWW9vnrkbbcaWjr1WM8&m=58n5_YS4_NDHb8Sz49LHAoMXgGypCpqG9fGxWZAHJ_s&s=Jwejrvrh9Ng2GbgoyyMWUy-cEhpHofJdewvpk8ZlJ0E&e=


The state still has some small tracts of old-growth forests, such as 49 acres of mature white 

pine at Crawford County's Hartwick Pines State Park, some half-century-old white cedar trees at 

Sleeping Bear Dunes National Lakeshore and a 300 year-old white oak at Price Nature Center 

in Saginaw.

Michigan has more than 20 million acres of forest, according to a 2019 report by the U.S. 

Department of Agriculture. Most of it, roughly 61.5%, is privately owned. State and local 

governments own 23% and the federal government owns 15.5%.

The DNR manages roughly 4 million acres of forests through the state forest system, Price said. 

It harvests timber from 2.6 million of those acres.

It does not log the remaining 1.4 million acres. Those are the areas where more trees are left to 

age. "We have a forest resource in Michigan that continues to mature and recover from the 

devastation of the big cut era," he said.

Page 54 of 146



One reason older trees are protected from climate change may be because they have more 

time to develop root systems that can reach deep underground for water during droughts, Au 

said. Those root systems also make old trees better at transpiration — trees' process for 

carrying water from their roots to the undersides of their leaves.

Some of that water is released into the air, Au said.

"They can actually cool down their environment," he said. "That means they can buffer the 

drought effect if there are more older trees."

Old trees also store a lot of carbon that otherwise would drift into the atmosphere and further 

climate change.

"When we manage the forest, considering the age could be another aspect to see how we 

tackle or resist future climate extremes," Au said.

Justin Maxwell, an Indiana University climatologist who coauthored the study with Au, said 

states traditionally have managed their forests to promote trees that produce high-quality 

lumber. But that should change, he said.

"Our findings suggest that managing forests for their ability to store carbon and to be resilient to 

drought could be an important tool in responding to climate change, and thinking about the age 

Page 55 of 146



of the forest is an important aspect of how the forest will respond to drought," he said in a press 

release about the study.

Diversity is one of the key things that make old forests especially strong, said Emily Clegg, 

director of land and water management for The Nature Conservancy's Michigan chapter.

"When we talk about diversity, what we're really talking about is diversity in species, diversity in 

age class and diversity in structure," Clegg said. "The more diversity you have in your forest, the 

more resilient your forest is going to be to climate change, because you're not putting all of your 

eggs, per se, in one basket." 

The Nature Conservancy owns and manages more than 100,000 acres of forest in Michigan 

after making a major purchase in the Keewenaw Peninsula this year. 

About 80,000 of those are logged for timber, but also managed to increase the diversity of tree 

species that grow there and let more trees mature, Clegg said.

She pointed to a unique challenge foresters face in building a climate-strong forest: trees grow 

slowly.

"This is a decades game," she said. "Anything we enact today is going to take us a while to 

figure out if it's actually working or not." 

The DNR is in the process of writing a new 10-year plan for the state forests, Price said. The 

department will embrace climate adaptation in the plan's next iteration with projects like 

increasing the diversity of tree species in forests and allowing trees in some areas to grow older. 

Price characterized those goals as "baby steps."

"In the longer term, we need more data about where our current forest types are located and 

what additional factors may lend toward greater resiliency based on the climate models," he 

said. "We just don't have that yet." ckthompson@detroitnews.com

Page 56 of 146

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.nature.org_en-2Dus_newsroom_michigan-2Dkeweenaw-2D31000-2Dacres-2Dprotected_&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=IQMlyjyX8pNQ3ggAcjS_lucfrWW9vnrkbbcaWjr1WM8&m=58n5_YS4_NDHb8Sz49LHAoMXgGypCpqG9fGxWZAHJ_s&s=CDqPT8k1Dn7xHr5teSRNbnsMaWP7IODlJ2-lJ_OiAEM&e=
mailto:ckthompson@detroitnews.com


    10/11/2022 

2023 BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 

MARQUETTE COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

*Meetings held on Wednesdays 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

JANUARY 18, 2023 - 4PM 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL 
 

FEBRUARY 15, 2023 – 4 PM 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL  
 

MARCH 15, 2023 – 4 PM 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL  
 

APRIL 19, 2023 – 4 PM - BOARD MEETING 

IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING REGULAR MEETING – STOCKHOLDER’S MTG 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL  
 

MAY 17, 2023 – 4 PM 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL  
 

JUNE 21, 2023 – 4 PM 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL  
 

JULY 19, 2023 – 4 PM 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL  
 

AUGUST 16, 2023 – 4 PM 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL  
 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2023 – 4 PM 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL  

OCTOBER 18, 2023 – 4 PM 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL  
 

DECEMBER 20, 2023 – 4 PM 

MARQUETTE COUNTY LANDFILL  

Page 57 of 146



9/30/2022 
 

2023 HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 

MARQUETTE COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 

JANUARY 2, 2023 

 

NEW YEAR’S DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

FEBRUARY 20, 2023 PRESIDENT’S DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

APRIL 7, 2023  

 

GOOD FRIDAY OPEN 6:30 A.M. – 11 A.M. 

MAY 29, 2023   

 

MEMORIAL DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

JULY 4, 2023 

 

INDEPENDENCE DAY 

(Tuesday) 

CLOSED 

SEPTEMBER 4, 2023 

 

LABOR DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

NOVEMBER 10, 2023 VETERANS DAY 

(Friday) 

CLOSED 

NOVEMBER 23, 2023  

 

THANKSGIVING DAY 

(Thursday) 

CLOSED 

NOVEMBER 24, 2023 

 

DAY AFTER THANKSGIVING 

(Friday) 

OPEN 6:30 A.M. – 11 A.M. 

DECEMBER 22, 2023  

 

CHRISTMAS EVE 

(Friday) 

OPEN 6:30 A.M. – 11 A.M. 

DECEMBER 25, 2023  

 

CHRISTMAS DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

DECEMBER 29, 2023  

 

NEW YEAR’S EVE 

(Friday) 

OPEN 6:30 A.M. – 11 A.M. 

JANUARY 1, 2024 

 

NEW YEAR’S DAY 

(Monday) 

CLOSED 

 

*NOTE: WHEN A HOLIDAY FALLS ON SATURDAY, THE DAY IS OBSERVED ON FRIDAY; 

WHEN A HOLIDAY FALLS ON SUNDAY, IT IS OBSERVED ON MONDAY 
 

 
 
 

Page 58 of 146



Page 59 of 146



Page 60 of 146



Page 61 of 146



Page 62 of 146



Page 63 of 146



Page 64 of 146



Page 65 of 146



Page 66 of 146



Page 67 of 146



Page 68 of 146



Page 69 of 146



Page 70 of 146



Page 71 of 146



Page 72 of 146



Page 73 of 146



Page 74 of 146



Page 75 of 146



Page 76 of 146



Page 77 of 146



Page 78 of 146



Page 79 of 146



Page 80 of 146



Page 81 of 146



Page 82 of 146



Page 83 of 146



Page 84 of 146



Page 85 of 146



Page 86 of 146



Page 87 of 146



Page 88 of 146



Page 89 of 146



Page 90 of 146



Page 91 of 146



Page 92 of 146



Page 93 of 146



Page 94 of 146



Page 95 of 146



Page 96 of 146



Page 97 of 146



Page 98 of 146



Page 99 of 146



Page 100 of 146



Page 101 of 146



                                                          
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP

 1000 Commerce Drive
Marquette, Michigan 49855

          Ph | 906.228.6220
Fx | 906.228.7337

www.marquettetownship.org

Mission Statement:

“To recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.”

                                                                            
Budget Amendment No. 2022-08
December 20, 2022

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MARQUETTE
FY 2022 BUDGET RESOLUTION

     WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the Marquette Township Board to establish General and Special Appropriations 
Acts for the purpose of budgeting Township finances in a manner which does not allow expenditure, including any accrued 
deficits, to exceed revenues, including any available unappropriated surpluses, and,
     WHEREAS, the Marquette Township Board recognizes that unforeseen activities may require amendments to these 
Appropriations Acts, such amendments shall be made by either formal resolution of the Marquette Township Board; or, by a 
ten percent (10%) of budget center contingency transfer authorized by the Township Manager, in such a manner so as not to 
allow the total expenditures, including accrued deficits, to exceed revenues and unappropriated surpluses; and,
     WHEREAS, the Marquette Township Appropriations Acts for 2022 do not permit deviations which cause expenditures 
for any activity to exceed budgeted amounts without amendment to the Act by the Marquette Township Board or the 
aforementioned contingency transfer; and,
     WHEREAS, the Marquette Township Board has duly reviewed the budgets for the General Appropriations Act and the 
Special Appropriations Act, both Acts include all funds of the Charter Township of Marquette, at public hearings of the 
Marquette Township Board,
     THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Marquette Township Board hereby amends the Appropriations Acts for 
2022 in accordance with budgetary information presented to this Board and the limitations defined within this Resolution.

    Current Budget      Amended Budget       Change
General Fund
 Revenue 2,730,942 2,836,942 106,000
 Expenditures
    Township Manager 151,707 155,707 4,000
    Clerk 133,395 149,195 15,800
    Capital 90,000 130,000 40,000
    Insurance 8,000 8,200 200
 Fund Balance 1,471,179 1,517,179 46,000
Fire Fund
  Revenue 952,114 933,114 (19,000)
  Fund Balance 57,720 38,720 (19,000)
Liquor Law Enforcement Fund
  Revenue 7,225 8,952 1,727
  Expenditures-Transfer Out 7,225 8,952 1,727
Library Fund
  Revenue 241,469 235,597 (5,872)
  Expenditures-Library Services 241,469 235,597 (5,872)
Wastewater Fund
  Expenditures
    Sewer System Salaries 213,775 224,025 10,250
    Customer Accounts 25,340 28,340 3,000
    Garage 16,300 19,300 3,000
    Net Position 3,578,346 3,562,096 (16,250)

Page 102 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


Water Fund
Revenue
   Sales 965,000 1,065,000 100,000
Expenditures
   Water System Salaries 133,050 137,550 4,500
   Water Pumping Station-Well 155,594 167,094 11,500
   Customer Accounts 25,406 28,406 3,000
   Hydrants 5,500 15,500 10,000
   Garage 16,000 19,000 3,000
   Net Position 2,242,641 2,310,641 68,000
Solid Waste
  Expenditures
    Waste/Refuse Collect & Disposal 231,582 253,112 21,530
    Customer Accounts 22,073 24,133 2,060
    Net Position 337,843 314,253 (23,590)
Metro Authority Fund
   Revenue 6,329 6106 (223)
   Expenditures
      Net Position 12,513 12,290 (223)

 
Authorization is requested to adjust Revenue and Expenditures in various funds.  In the 

General Fund, Expenditures are increased due to vacation payouts, automatic handicap accessible 
door opener and new lawn mower purchase.  

The Fire Fund shows a decrease in Revenue (taxes).

The Liquor Law Enforcement Fund Revenue and Expenditure increases are based on 
actual payments from the State of Michigan.

The Wastewater Fund Expenditure increases are in Sewer System and Customer Accounts 
due to vacation payouts and bonuses and in the Garage (repair and maintenance).

The Water Fund Revenue increase in Sales from utility payments.  Expenditures are 
increased due to vacation payouts and bonuses.

The Solid Waste Fund has increases in Revenue due to the year end vacation payouts and 
bonuses.

 

Page 103 of 146



                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: December 20, 2022  
Agenda Item #: 9.A.  
Proposal: Consider Andre Brown for Probationary 

Firefighter (paid-on-call) for the Fire 
Department  

Presented by: Supervisor Lyn Durant and Fire Chief Dan 
Shanahan  

 
 
Background: 
The MTFD interview committee recently interviewed Andre Brown. Andre recently 
moved back to the area and is a certified wildland firefighter.  After graduating from 
college at NMU, he worked for the US Forest Service as a firefighter in Colorado. Andre 
would be attending the State of MI Fire School this winter if approved. He is 
recommended for the position of Probationary FIrefighter.  
 
Attachments: None  
  
Cost: $ Budgeted 
  
Budget Account: Fire Fund - Operations  
   
Recommended motion: 
Accept the recommendation of the Fire Chief and Township Supervisor and hire Andre 
Brown as Probationary Firefighter.  

Page 104 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: December 20, 2022  
Agenda Item #: 9.B.  
Proposal: Consider Supervisor Committee 

Recommendations for 2023  
Presented by: Supervisor Durant  

 
 
Background: 
Several Committees have members that are expiring or needed to be reappointed.  
 
Attachments: 1. Committee Recommendations 12-20-22 
  
Cost: $ N/A 
  
Budget Account: N/A  
   
Recommended motion: 
Approve the recommendations of the Supervisor for Committee Appointments.  

Page 105 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


                                                          
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP

 1000 Commerce Drive
Marquette, Michigan 49855

          Ph | 906.228.6220
Fx | 906.228.7337

www.marquettetownship.org

Mission Statement:

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.”

M E M O

TO: Marquette Township Board

FROM: Lyn Durant, Supervisor

RE: 2023 Committee Recommendations

DATE: December 20, 2022 

Please consider my recommendations for the following Township committees to take effect 
January 1, 2023:

Re-appoint
Jim Johnson, Planning Commission, term to expire 12/31/25
Dennis Ferraro, Planning Commission, term to expire 12/31/25
Tom Fure, Recreation Committee, term to expire 12/31/25
Frank Stabile, Downtown Development Authority, term to expire 12/31/26
Jim Johnson, Zoning Board of Appeals (Planning Commission liaison), term to expire 12/31/25
William Truscott, Zoning Board of Appeals, term to expire 12/31/25
James Becker, Zoning Board of Appeals (alternate), term to expire 12/31/25
Michael Springer, Iron Ore Heritage Recreation Authority (alternate) term to expire 3/31/25
Kellie Hillier-Genschaw, Board of Review, term to expire 12/31/24
Micki Truscott, Board of Review, term to expire 12/31/24

Appoint
Pete LaRue, Road Committee, term to expire 12/31/25
Karl Kytta, Board Liaison to the Road Committee, term to expire 11/19/24
Kristy McBride, Recreation Committee, term to expire 12/31/25
Brent Graves, Zoning Board of Appeals, term to expire 12/31/25

Open Seats
Board of Review, term to expire 12/31/23
Downtown Development Authority (live or have interest in DDA area), term to expire 12/31/24

Page 106 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: December 20, 2022  
Agenda Item #: 9.C.  
Proposal: Schedule Special Meeting to Discuss 

Township Events  
Presented by: Supervisor Durant  

 
 
Background: 
With the change of Committee Members in the Events Committee, the Township Board 
would like to meet and discuss the future of the Events Committee.  
 
Attachments: None  
  
Cost: $ N/A 
  
Budget Account: N/A  
   
Recommended motion: 
To Schedule a Special Meeting for the Purpose of Discussion of the Township Events 
Committee,  ________________ time, __________________, at the Marquette 
Township Community Center.  

Page 107 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: December 20, 2022  
Agenda Item #: 9.D.  
Proposal: Consider Establishing Ad-Hoc Committee to 

Discuss Establishing a Township Police 
Department  

Presented by: Supervisor Durant  
 

 
Background: 
Members of the Board have expressed interest in exploring what would the cost be to 
establish a Police Department for the Township  
 
Attachments: None  
  
Cost: $ N/A 
  
Budget Account: N/A  
   
Recommended motion: 
To form a (3) Three Person  Ad-Hoc Committee to explore the cost and feasibility of 
creating a Police Department for the Township.  

Page 108 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: December 20, 2022  
Agenda Item #: 9.E.  
Proposal: 

 

Presented by: 
 

 
 
Background:  
 
Attachments: 1. Funding letter for PFOS 12-6-22 
  
Cost: $  
  
Budget Account: 

 

   
Recommended motion:  

Page 109 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


Page 110 of 146



Page 111 of 146



Page 112 of 146



Page 113 of 146



Page 114 of 146



                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: December 20, 2022  
Agenda Item #: 9.F.  
Proposal: Consider Renewal of Municipal Risk 

Insurance Policy  
Presented by: Jon Kangas, Township Manager  

 
 
Background: 
Earlier this year, staff was directed by the Board to review all reasonable alternatives to 
our existing liability insurance policy.  We have determined there to be two reasonable 
alternatives to Par Plan.  Those alternatives are MML and MMRMA.  MML is 
represented by Guathier Insurance from Ishpeming and MMRMA is represented by UP 
Insurance Agency from Negaunee.  As of the writing of this Action Item, we have only 
received one of the three anticipated proposals.  In the event all three proposals are 
received with adequate time to make a recommendation, we will share that with you as 
soon as we are able.  If not, we will likely be required to schedule a Special Meeting prior 
to year end.  
 
Attachments: None  
  
Cost: $ $25,000-$40,000 (TBD) 
  
Budget Account: Varies - applies to all divisions.  
   
Recommended motion: 
TBD  

Page 115 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: December 20, 2022  
Agenda Item #: 9.G.  
Proposal: Consider Renewal of Health Insurance 

Policy  
Presented by: Jon Kangas, Township Manager  

 
 
Background: 
Earlier this year, staff was directed to seek reasonable alternatives to our insurance 
policies.  Our BCBS policy is already reviewed on an annual basis and is subject to 
negotiation with both bargaining units on an annual basis.  Vast has been our agency of 
record for this policy for many years and has done a good job evaluating as many 
alternatives as reasonably possible.  In this market, however, there remains a limited 
market for us.  We have received multiple BCBS alternatives to consider this year, but 
have not had an opportunity to present them to staff representatives yet.  They will 
receive that information this afternoon.  We believe the process this year could be more 
challenging in prior years due to budgeting assumptions made, changes to plans 
required by ACA, etc.  However, we are hoping to present a renewal option for your 
consideration by next Tuesday.  If that recommendation isn't feasible by then, we will 
again need to consider a Special Meeting prior to year end.  (We budgeted up to a 10% 
increase in premium and it looks like we should be able to stay within the approved 
budget.)  
 
Attachments: None  
  
Cost: $ TBD (up to $250,000) 
  
Budget Account: Varies - all divisions with participating staff.  
   
Recommended motion: 
Renew the health insurance policy according to terms negotiated with bargaining units. 
(Terms TBD.)  

Page 116 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: December 20, 2022  
Agenda Item #: 9.H.  
Proposal: Consider Financial Audit Services Proposal  
Presented by: Jon Kangas, Township Manager and Kim 

Clark, Accountant  
 

 
Background: 
We requested proposals for Financial Audit Services for the coming 3-year period (2022-
2024.)  RFP's went out to 8 firms and one proposal was received by the deadline.  Two 
other firms respectfully declined because they do not provide those services at this time. 
 The remaining five firms were non-responsive.  However, we are pleased that our 
current audit firm, Gabridge & Co. of Grand Rapids did submit.  We feel we have had an 
excellent relationship with them over the years and are confident in recommending them 
for the next three years.  The 2021 audit cost Marquette Township $9,600.  You will see 
that there are significant inflationary adjustments and what we assume to be 
adjustments due to the departure of our former Accountant.  With the changing of staff, 
additional effort can be expected due to relatively less experience with the Township's 
fund accounting.  In addition, we will only receive a 10% discount instead of prior years' 
20% discount.  
 
Attachments: 1. gabridge proposal 2022-2024 
  
Cost: $ 16,740 for current year (2022), $17,200 for 2023, 

$17,700 for 2024. 
  
Budget Account: Varies - all funds.  
   
Recommended motion: 
Approve the proposal for Financial Audit Services from Gabridge & Co. in the amounts 
of $16,740 for 2022, $17,200 for 2023 and $17,700 for 2024.  

Page 117 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


Page 118 of 146



Page 119 of 146



Page 120 of 146



Page 121 of 146



Page 122 of 146



Page 123 of 146



Page 124 of 146



Page 125 of 146



Page 126 of 146



Page 127 of 146



Page 128 of 146



Page 129 of 146



Page 130 of 146



Page 131 of 146



Page 132 of 146



Page 133 of 146



Page 134 of 146



Page 135 of 146



                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: December 20, 2022  
Agenda Item #: 9.I.  
Proposal: Consider Driveway Approach Repairs at 

1963 Fair Avenue  
Presented by: Jon Kangas, Township Manager  

 
 
Background: 
Earlier this year, Supervisor Durant was approached by a resident on Fair Avenue 
regarding the rapid deterioration of their driveway approach.  Staff inspected the 
approach and determined it was replaced as part of a prior Township Project.  This 
particular driveway approach is newer than the remaining driveway, but is in far worse 
condition.  It is also deteriorating far more rapidly than other driveways in the vicinity. 
 There are several issues to consider here.  First, we are told by the owner that he has 
historically allowed City plow trucks and garbage trucks to use his driveway to turn 
around.  This practice has occurred for many years.  However, prior to the township 
project replacing the approach, he never had the deterioration he currently has.  Without 
digging up the driveway, my engineering experience suggests to me that when the 
township project was restored, the driveway cross-section used was a standard 6"-8" of 
aggregate base course with 2" of asphalt pavement.  I also suspect that there are 
underlying subsurface issues in this specific area that may have caused this standard 
cross-section to fail prematurely.  First, it was likely not built adequately for regular heavy 
truck traffic.  Second, it is suspected that shallow ground water may be trapped beneath 
the driveway, causing a "pumping/heaving" action of the driveway cross-section.  The 
property owner indicates that he used a heavier cross-section when the entire driveway 
was originally built.  It is very possible that the township project replaced the approach 
with a substandard cross-section for this location.  I caution that only subsurface 
exploration will determine if my judgment is correct in this case.  Therefore, it is with 
great caution that I make the following recommendation.  Superior Paving has submitted 
a quote to repair this driveway approach, along with a more reasonable alternative.  My 
recommendation is to award the bid to Superior Paving to repair the driveway approach 
at 1963 Fair Avenue, but only after verifying the approach cross-section and subsurface 
conditions match my predictions.   I also recommend the more reasonable alternative 
that utilizes the geogrid.  Geogrid has been proven in many cases to eliminate the 
"pumping/heaving" issues that are present in this case.  This should not be considered a 
precedent-setting decision since the conditions appear to be unique to this single 
location and the only driveway approach impacted by the prior township project.  We 
estimate this driveway repair to be less than 10 years old (later than 2014, but the actual 
year is uncertain.)  
 
Attachments: 1. 1963 Fair Ave dwy approach 

Page 136 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

  
Cost: $ 7,600 
  
Budget Account: Wastewater  
   
Recommended motion: 
Award the driveway approach repair at 1963 Fair Avenue to Superior Paving for the 
quoted proposal amount of $7,600, to be paid with Wastewater Fund reserves.  

Page 137 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


Page 138 of 146



                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: December 20, 2022  
Agenda Item #: 9.J.  
Proposal: Accept Van Overloop Donation  
Presented by: Jon Kangas, Township Manager  

 
 
Background: 
Earlier this year, former Grove Street resident Peg Van Overloop passed away. Since 
then, the Township has received a $50 donation from her estate.  It is staff's 
recommendation that this donation be accepted and earmarked for future improvements 
to the Township entrance sign/plantings (beautification) on Grove Street to best 
commemorate this former resident and the corresponding donation.  
 
Attachments: None  
  
Cost: $ 50.00 
  
Budget Account: Beautification  
   
Recommended motion: 
Accept the Van Overloop donation and earmark it for the beautification of the Grove 
Street entrance sign.  

Page 139 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


                                                            
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

  1000 Commerce Drive 
Marquette, Michigan 49855 

           Ph | 906.228.6220 
Fx | 906.228.7337 

www.marquettetownship.org 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“Recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community.” 

Board Action Item 
  
Board Meeting Date: December 20, 2022  
Agenda Item #: 9.K.  
Proposal: Consider PA425 Agreement with City of 

Marquette  
Presented by: Jon Kangas, Township Manager  

 
 
Background: 
Longyear has requested the Township and City enter into a PA 425 agreement with the 
City of Marquette for approximately 34 acres of their property in the City.  The property 
would be treated like Township property but operating millage revenues would be 
distributed to the City.  All taxes and utility rates would be levied at Township rates.  This 
agreement allows Longyear to increase the size of their development by about 20% and 
submit one PUD application to the Township.  Staff believes this is the most efficient use 
of the land.  Not entering this agreement will likely leave the City property undeveloped. 
 The agreement as presented has been reviewed by all parties.  
 
Attachments: None  
  
Cost: $ Depends on final PUD. 
  
Budget Account: All funds.  
   
Recommended motion: 
Approve the PA 425 agreement with the City of Marquette as presented.  

Page 140 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp


Page 141 of 146



Page 142 of 146



                                                          
MARQUETTE TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT

2801 Venture Drive
Marquette, Michigan 49855

          Ph | 906.228.4296
Fx | 906.228.4297

www.marquettetownship.org

1

TO:  Marquette Township Board, Manager Kangas

FROM:  Dan Shanahan, Fire Chief

DATE:  December 20, 2022

SUBJECT:  November 2022 Fire Department Report

Fire Fighter Training:  

 November – Electrical Safety / Lock Out Tag Out
 December – Scene Size Up / Reading Smoke
 January – Infectious control

EMS: 
 December – AED Airway for CEU’s

Emergency Response:  

 November 2022 – 50 Calls for Service (CFS). November 2021 – 41 CFS 
 Medical calls – 39; 78%   
 Fire Response 

o EMS – Mutual Aid – 6 
o Structure Fires – One in Negaunee Twp. 
o Smoke / CO Alarms – 2 
o Brush Fires – 2; one assisted CTFD

 Call Volume YTD - 600 / 2021 – 511

Membership:  

 Membership – 31; 2 on leave 
 Monthly Equipment and Truck Check outs
 Ring the Bell Cops vs. Firefighters
 Hired two FF’s Shannah Porath / Nate Williams 
 Interviews – One 

Page 143 of 146



2

Plan Reviews/Projects/Inspections:

 Life Safety Inspection – Mount Mfg.
 Short Term Rentals - 1
 North Star Academy – fire alarms

 Meetings:   

 MI State Fire Marshal updates - 2
 MTFD Officers and Business 
 MTFD FT Staff meeting with Manager Kangas
 MDHHS – conference calls
 Vehicle Tablets – updates

Reports:  

 NFIRS uploaded and sent on 11/01/2022  
 EMS reports to MI-EMIS daily (MI Emergency Medical Information System)

Grants/Donations: 

 LOWES – Donation of $1,000 in store product
 AFG – extended until 12/31/2022

Trucks:  

 No major repairs

Miscellaneous:

 Several Smoke / Carbon Monoxide Detectors given to residents and installed in 
homes

 Hosted Region 8 Homeland Security Meeting
 MARESA performed a site visit to discuss our intern
 Delivered Santa to the Tree Lighting Ceremony 

Page 144 of 146



                                                          
MARQUETTE TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT

2801 Venture Drive
Marquette, Michigan 49855

          Ph | 906.228.4296
Fx | 906.228.4297

www.marquettetownship.org

3

 

.  

Page 145 of 146



                                                          
MARQUETTE CHARTER TOWNSHIP

 1000 Commerce Drive
Marquette, Michigan 49855

          Ph | 906.228.6220
Fx | 906.228.7337

www.marquettetownship.org

Mission Statement:

“To recognize and meet the needs of the Township Community”

To: Township Board
CC. Manager Jon Kangas
From: Superintendent of Public Works Leonard Bodenus
Date:  December 15, 2022 
Regarding: December 2022 Public Works and B/G Staff Report

590 Wastewater

Some work has been completed on our Center L.S. Generator project. With a 52 week wait time on generators 
this project is essentially at a standstill.

We continue to investigate inflow and infiltration issues. This mainly occurs in manholes although we have 
seen it in grinder tanks. We are currently working on a couple of projects to minimize this infiltration. 

591- Water

We are continuing to wait for the replacement pump for our #7 well. Supply chain issues are complicating the 
matter.

Staff has been going through our meter program. They have been verifying the multipliers listed on the meters 
This insures they are reporting the correct readings. 

I have completed the Michigan Infrastructure Council Asset Management Champion Program. It was a long 
and intensive program however I was able to learn valuable information that can be used in our asset 
management program. For the spring cycle I have nominated one of our Service Workers and our Water 
Operator to take the course.

Building and Grounds

Staff has been keeping parking lots and sidewalks clean when it snows.

We attempted to make ice at the rink during the first week of December however warmer temps thwarted out 
efforts. With the coming cooler temperatures we will try to make ice as quickly as possible.

The rink building retrofit is almost complete.

Page 146 of 146

http://www.facebook.com/mqttwp

	1. Call to order
	A. Pledge of Allegiance
	B. Roll Call

	2. Public Comment (3 minutes each)
	3. Board Member Comment in Response to Public Comment
	4. Public Hearing
	A. Consider Public Act 425 Agreement with City of Mar
	Joint 425 Agreement with City of Marquette


	5. Consent Agenda
	A. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of December 6,
	December 6, 2022 Board Minutes

	B. Bills Payable in the amount of $176,030.49.  Check
	12-20-22

	C. Received Committee and Other Reports
	1. Sheriff's Department Activity Report - August 2022
	Sheriff August 2022
	Sheriff September 2022
	Sheriff November 2022


	D. Correspondence not Requiring Board Action
	1. U of M Ecologist Suggests Protecting MI Forests
	U of M forests change 12-6-22

	2. MCSWMA Meeting Schedule 2023
	2023 Meeting Schedule

	3. MCSWMA Holiday Schedule 2023
	2023 Holiday Schedule

	4. MCSWMA 12-21-22 Abbreviated Packet
	MCSWMA 12-21-22 Abbreviated

	5. Charter Communication - Upcoming Changes Memo
	Charter 122022


	E. Financial Statements
	1. November 2022 Financial Statements
	November 2022

	2. Budget Amendment 2022-08
	2022 BUDGET AMENDMENT 08



	6. Approval of the Agenda
	7. Board Education/Privileged Comment
	8. Community Linkage 
	9. Policy Discussion, Consideration and Development
	A. Consider Fire Department On-Call Firefighter Andre
	Board Action Item

	B. Consider Supervisor Committee Recommendations for 
	Board Action Item
	Committee Recommendations 12-20-22

	C. Schedule Special Meeting to Discuss Township Event
	Board Action Item

	D. Consider Establishing Ad-Hoc Committee to Discuss 
	Board Action Item

	E. Discuss MCSWMA Funding Request-PFAS Processing Fac
	Board Action Item
	Funding letter for PFOS 12-6-22

	F. Consider Renewal of Municipal Risk Insurance Polic
	Board Action Item

	G. Consider Renewal of Health Insurance Policy
	Board Action Item

	H. Consider Financial Audit Services Proposal
	Board Action Item
	gabridge proposal 2022-2024

	I. Consider Driveway Approach Repairs
	Board Action Item
	1963 Fair Ave dwy approach

	J. Accept Van Overloop Donation
	Board Action Item

	K. Consider PA 425 Agreement with City of Marquette f
	Board Action Item


	10. Assurance of Organizational Performance
	A. Board - Committee Updates
	1. Fire Department November 2022 Report
	Nov 2022 Board Report
	November 2022 MTFD Report

	2. Public Works Report
	December 2022 Department Report

	3. Attorney Report


	11. Public Comment (3 Minutes maximum)
	12. Meeting Wrap-up
	A. Announcements
	B. Manager’s Report
	C. Review of Motions Passed & Assignments, if any
	D. Items for Future Agenda
	E. Board Member Comment

	13. Adjournment

